
 

MINUTES 
SUNNYVALE PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION 

SPECIAL MEETING 
JUNE 24, 2009 

 
 
The Sunnyvale Parks and Recreation Commission met in special session in City Hall Council 
Chambers, at 456 W. Olive Avenue, Sunnyvale, CA 94086 at 7 p.m. with Chair Colvin presiding. 
 
The meeting was called to order at 7 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Commissioners 
Present: 

Chair Jim Colvin 
Vice Chair Richard Oliver 
Commissioner Robert Harms 
Commissioner Bob Kinder 

Commissioners 
Absent: 

Commissioner Howard Chuck (excused) 

Staff Present: Director of Community Services David A. Lewis 
Assistant to the Director of Community Services Cathy E. Merrill 
Parks Superintendent Curtis Black 
Manager Jenny Shain 

 
CONSIDERATION OF ABSENCE 
The Commission determined by general consent that Commissioner Chuck’s absence was excused. 
 
SCHEDULED PRESENTATION - None 
 
PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS – None 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR - None 
 
STAFF RESPONSES TO PRIOR PUBLIC COMMENTS – None 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS - None 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS/GENERAL BUSINESS 
 
2. Consideration of Parks of the Future Study (Council Action 7/14/09) 
 
Assistant to the Director Merrill noted this was a special meeting and introduced Manager Jenny 
Shain who provided the staff report. Manager Shain covered major areas of the report and 
incorporated alternatives and staff’s recommendations into the relevant sections as they were 
discussed. 
 
Commissioners opened joint discussion and questions were answered. 
 
Vice Chair Oliver requested clarification regarding staff recommendation No. 10, amend the Open 
Space and Recreation Sub-Element to include a new open space policy. He also noted there are 16 
total staff recommendations and 3 high priority recommendations. Manager Shain confirmed that staff 
is supporting all 16 recommendations. Director Lewis responded that the city manager asked staff to 
identify their top 3 recommendations which are highlighted in the report. Director Lewis reminded the 
Commission that they can recommend any of the items listed and/or add any of their own. 



Parks and Recreation Commission Minutes 
Special Meeting, June 24, 2009 

Page 2 of 4 
 
 

 2

 
Chair Colvin stated his desire for the City to expand the agreements with local schools for shared use 
of facilities. Director Lewis explained that the City has reviewed the agreements and, in some areas, 
the schools are choosing to close off more facilities and make them less available. Chair Colvin asked 
if the City’s park acres per 1,000 population would increase if Homestead High School opened its site. 
Parks Superintendent Black said that currently there is no agreement to use Homestead High School 
property. Manager Shain said it would be a policy change to include school property as part of the 
City’s park acres per 1,000 population. 
 
Commissioner Kinder noted the lack of park land north of Hwy 237. He stated the City has been 
shortchanged by its past leaders who did not raise the level of park dedication fees, and he hopes this 
will bring the change in standard so future generations will have access to open space. He stated that 
mixed use of fields does seem to be effective. He noted a correction on page 21 of the report: skinned 
infields relate to softball (not baseball). He likes the idea of a “Friends of Parks and Recreation” 
organization and would have preferred that staff recommend forming a group. Director Lewis said 
staff can and will remain open to the idea of working with a “Friends” group; however, the initiative 
needs to start with the community. 
 
Commissioner Harms requested that staff put a high priority on staff recommendation No. 3, sell 
Orchard Gardens parksite housing. Director Lewis responded that there are several opinions related 
to “sell” or “not sell and develop into park land,” but the Commission can make their own 
recommendations to Council. Commissioner Harms asked if the city manager recommends selling 
Orchard Gardens housing. Director Lewis confirmed that the city manager supports the 
recommendation. 
 
Commissioner Harms inquired about design guidelines and the impact on current and future capital 
improvement projects (CIPs). Director Lewis responded that currently funded projects and future 
projects would follow the design guidelines, if adopted. Manager Shain added that Victory Village is 
an example of where exceptions are made. Commissioner Harms inquired about recommendations 
for re-designing existing parks, such as Las Palmas Park pond. Commissioner Harms continued that 
he would recommend selling Plaza del Sol since almost no one uses it. 
 
Chair Colvin asked if the Parks of the Future Study is considered a 20-year plan. Director Lewis 
responded affirmatively and that the study is to set up the framework and key concepts regarding 
Level of Service (LOS), future plans, and future sub-element updates. 
 
Chair Colvin noted that while the order of recommendations could change, is it a consideration to wait 
until property values increase before selling. Director Lewis said the recommendation is to sell, but the 
recommendation does not designate when to sell; ideally, the City would strive to sell at the best 
possible time in order to get a good return on its investment. 
 
There were no more questions and Chair Colvin opened the public hearing. 
 
Mr. Frederick Stawitcke, Sunnyvale resident, read highlights from an email written by his friend Mr. 
Garth Williams to the Commission. He expressed his recommendation to direct staff to work with 
Mountain View on access to and potential uses of the open space east of Hwy 85 adjacent to the 
Stevens Creek. Mr. Stawitcke requested that the email be included in the Commission minutes 
(attached). 
 
Chair Colvin said there is a process for members of the public to propose study issues. 
 
Director Lewis said that Council is taking action to work with neighboring cities on border issues. 



Parks and Recreation Commission Minutes 
Special Meeting, June 24, 2009 

Page 3 of 4 
 
 

 3

 
Chair Colvin closed the public hearing. 
 
MOTION: Commissioner Kinder moved to recommend that Council accept staff’s recommendations, 
Alternatives 1 through 16, with emphasis on Alternatives 1, 10 and 15. 
 
Commissioner Harms requested a friendly amendment to add the recommendation to sell Plaza del 
Sol. 
 
The friendly amendment was not accepted by the maker of the motion. 
 
Commissioner Kinder said Commissioners may agree or disagree with the idea to sell Plaza del Sol, 
and he would like to see it considered; however, not as a part of this action. 
 
Vice Chair Oliver requested that Mr. Garth Williams’ email be incorporated into the final report to 
Council. 
 
MOTION RESTATED: Commissioner Kinder moved and Vice Chair Oliver seconded to 
recommend that Council accept staff’s recommendations, Alternatives 1 through 16, with 
emphasis on Alternatives 1, 10 and 15. 
 
VOTE:  Motion passed unanimously 4-0. Commissioner Chuck was absent. 
 
NON-AGENDA ITEMS AND COMMENTS 
 
COMMISSIONER Oral Comments 
Chair Colvin said he attended the June 23, 2009, Council meeting and accepted a proclamation on 
behalf of the Commission – July is Parks and Recreation Month and July 4th is a Day to Play. 
 
Chair Colvin noted tonight was Commissioner Kinder’s last meeting and expressed his appreciation 
and thanks for Commissioner Kinder’s service. 
 
Vice Chair Oliver asked that Commissioner Kinder be sure to keep him on his phone list. 
 
STAFF Oral Comments 
Director Lewis and Assistant to the Director Merrill thanked Commissioner Kinder for his service to the 
Commission. 
 
INFORMATION ONLY ITEMS 

• Miscellaneous Items of Interest 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting was adjourned at 8 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Cathy E. Merrill, Assistant to the Director 
Department of Community Service 

Reviewed by: 
 
 
 
David A. Lewis, Director 
Department of Community Services 
 

ks 



Parks and Recreation Commission Minutes 
Special Meeting, June 24, 2009 

Page 4 of 4 
 
 

 4

ATTACHMENT 
 
From:  Garth Williams 
To: <Parks&RecreationCommission@ci.sunnyvale.ca.us> 
CC: <jshain@ci.sunnyvale.ca.us> 
Date:  6/23/2009 1:00 PM 
Subject:  Parks of the Future Draft RTC 
Attachments: Remington.pdf 
 
Dear Parks & Recreation Commission, 
 
I will not be able to make the meeting to provide input in person so I am sending this email instead.  In general I 
think Parks of the Future has been an excellent study; allowed for significant community input; and should help 
Sunnyvale improve even more on its parks and recreational opportunities for its residents.  I am however 
disappointed that the potential open space adjacent to Hwy 85 along the Stevens Creek is not mentioned as a 
priority for further study. (see attached picture)  I believe the area circled in red is 20+ acres.  While I think much 
of the land is owned by the City of Mountain View, now that Sunnyvale has agreed to cooperate fully with 
Mountain View (Cupertino and Los Altos, also) in planning for the extention of the Stevens Creek Trail, I think 
the time is right to engage with Mountain View on potential uses of this land in addition to the trail which will only 
utillitze a small portion of the open space.   
 
Please consider making a high priority recommendation to Council along the lines of "Direct staff to work with 
Mountain View on access to and potential uses of the open space East of Hwy 85 adjacent to the Stevens 
Creek." As the draft RTC says on page 12 "Sunnyvale, however, is a largely built out City and there will be 
limited opportunities to acquire open space moving forward."  Let's take full advangate of this potential to 
significantly increase the open space availble to Sunnyvale residents. 
 
Thank you for your consideration.  
 
- garth 
 



garth
Pencil


